CITY COUNCIL

Chris Dobbs, Mayor Bruce T. Roundy, Vice-Mayor Jeffrey A. Tolley John McDermott Mathew Romano

> CITY OFFICIALS Jennifer Schmitke City Clerk

Leticia Espinosa City Treasurer



INCORPORATED 1909

815 Fourth Street ORLAND, CALIFORNIA 95963 Telephone (530) 865-1600 Fax (530) 865-1632



CITY MANAGER Peter R. Carr

Meeting Place: Carnegie Center 912 Third Street Orland CA 95963

AGENDA REGULAR MEETING, ORLAND PLANNING COMMISSION

Thursday, May 18, 2023 at 5:30 P.M.

Public comments are welcomed and encouraged in advance of the meeting by emailing the City Clerk at <u>itschmitke@cityoforland.com</u> or by phone at (530) 865-1610 by 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

The public is encouraged to participate in the meeting via Zoom or can participate at Carnegie Center.

ZOOM Link: www.zoom.us

WEBINAR ID# 840 7387 1370

ZOOM Telephone - Please call: 1 (669) 900-9128

- 1. CALL TO ORDER
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- 3. ROLL CALL
- 4. ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

Citizen Comments:

Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on any item(s) not on the agenda, may do so at this time when recognized by the Chairperson; however, no formal action or discussion will be taken unless placed on a future agenda. Public is advised to limit discussion to one presentation per individual. While not required, please state your name and address for the record. **(Oral communications will be limited to three minutes).**

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

Approval of Prior Minutes: April 20, 2023 (p.1)

Orland Planning Commission May 18, 2023 Page 2

6. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

PENBROOK SUBDIVISION: TSM 2022-01 (Discussion/Direction) – Scott Friend, City Planner (p.4)

- 7. STAFF REPORT
- 8. COMMISSIONER REPORTS
- 9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
- 10. ADJOURN

CERTIFICATION: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), the agenda for this meeting was properly posted on May 15, 2023.

A complete agenda packet is available for public inspection during normal business hours at City Hall, 815 Fourth Street, Orland, CA.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Orland will make available to members of the public any special assistance necessary to participate in this meeting. The public should contact the City Clerk's Office at (530) 865-1610 to make such a request. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES April 20, 2023

1. Call to Order – The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Stephen Nordbye at 5:30 PM.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:

Commissioner's present –	Chairperson Stephen Nordbye, Vice Chairperson Wade Elliott Commissioners Sharon Lazorko, Michelle Romano, and Vern Montague
Commissioner's absent -	None
Councilmember present -	Councilmember McDermott
Staff present-	City Planner Scott Friend and City Clerk Jennifer Schmitke

4. ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

Citizen Comments

Steve Butler, Precision Surveying, and applicant representative for the proposed Penbrook Tentative Subdivision Map project, presented a letter on behalf of Lakeport Parkside, LLC (Penbrook Subdivision) proposing a text change to the City's Circulation Element and requesting that the matter be placed on the next Planning Commission meeting agenda for discussion/action.

City Planner Scott Friend shared that item can only be added to next month's agenda as a discussion/direction item due to State requirements for such action and due to mandatory timeframes contained in State statutes.

Chairperson Nordbye stated the item would be added to the next agenda.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

Approval of Prior Minutes: March 16, 2023

ACTION: Commissioner Lazorko moved, seconded by Commissioner Romano to approve consent calendar as presented. Motion carried unanimously by a voice vote, 5-0.

6. PUBLIC HEARING

Conditional Use Permit: CUP 2023-01 – Harvest Baptist Church Temporary Tent Structure (1202 Railroad Avenue)

City Planner Scott Friend presented a request to approve a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to permit the erection of a temporary event tent structure to act as an interim sanctuary for the Harvest Baptist Church on an existing parcel identified as 1202 Railroad Avenue. Mr. Friend stated that the parcel is currently developed with existing Sanctuary and Parsonage, the parcel is designated *Light Industrial/Commercial (I-L/C)* on the General Plan land use map and located in the *M-L (Limited Industrial)* zoning district.

Mr. Friend explained that the parcel is currently owned by the Harvest Baptist Church, due to the small size of the building they are requesting the use of a temporary tent structure that would be 40'X60' in size to accommodate the growing number of patrons for large attendance weekends and events.

Mr. Friend shared with the Commission an amendment to the staff report where condition #26 was changed to reflect that the duration of time in which the proposed tent structure is permitted to be erected onsite shall be a max of 180 days from date of approval of the Conditional Use Permit, instead of 12 months as noted in the project Conditions of Approval.

Isaac Davis, Harvest Baptist Church Pastor shared that it is his goal is to build a whole new church but until then the church plans on upgrading the sanctuary and the temporary tent will allow for services to still take place will upgrades are happening. Mr. Davis stated the use of the tent is usually around Easter Sunday and that 180 days would work for his growing congregation.

Chairperson Nordbye asked if the Commission would use wording that states the tent can be up for 180 calendar days. Mr. Friend asked City Building Official Wyatt Paxton, who confirmed that is the way he would phrase the text.

Commissioners asked questions to City Staff and Mr. Davis about their needs and about the CUP. Mr. Davis noted that he appreciated the Commissions help and consideration for his needs.

Chairperson Nordbye opened the Public Hearing at 5:48 PM.

With no comments, Chairperson Nordbye closed the Public Hearing at 5:48 PM.

ACTION: Vice Chairperson Elliott moved, seconded by Chairperson Nordbye that the Planning Commission approve the project (CUP 2023-01) and determine that the proposed action is exempt from further review pursuant to Section 15311 of the Public Resources Code and approve Planning Commission Resolution PC 2023-01, approving Conditional Use Permit 2023-01 as recommended in the staff report and amending Condition of Approval number 26 to identify that the use permit will be granted with the restriction of not to exceed 180 days in one calendar year and would continue with the land moving forward. Motion carried, 5-0 by a voice vote.

7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

Mr. Friend brought to Commission a discussion about Streetscapes and Roundabouts.

Mr. Friend referred to "Streetscapes" as the natural and built fabric of the street and defined it as the design quality of the street and its visual effect.

- 1: The appearance or view of a street
- 2: A work of art depicting a view of a street

Mr. Friend spoke about Streetscape design guidelines, explained typical Streetscape objectives, and described Streetscape public art, utilities, and roadway reconfiguration.

Mr. Friend gave examples and showed pictures of nearby communities with a Streetscape plan. Mr. Friend shared the City's vision for the Walker Street Streetscape Improvement Master Plan describing the concept and the goals for the project. Commission members discussed concerns they have with the Walker Street Streetscape project and asked questions about funding. The Commission was in consensus that they would like to see a recommendation from staff to move forward with the Streetscape project, upgrading and updating downtown to make it ready for Caltrans to begin the project.

Mr. Friend described "Roundabouts", also known as a rotary or traffic circle, is a type of circulation intersection or junction in which road traffic is permitted to flow in one direction around a central island, and priority is typically given to traffic already in the junction.

Mr. Friend spoke about opportunities for roundabouts in Orland, explained pros and cons and showed pictures of different types of roundabouts.

The Commission shared concerns they have with roundabouts and asked questions about where they would be useful within the City.

8. STAFF REPORT

Mr. Friend thanked the Commissioners that were able to attend the Planning Commissioner training in Oroville.

Mr. Friend shared that the City Council held a public hearing at the April 18th meeting for the multi-tenant sign zoning code amendment and that was approved unanimously by the City Council and will be put on the May 2nd agenda for final review and approval.

Mr. Friend reminded Commissioners that when they want to discuss a matter with fellow Commissioners Staff need 72 hours before the meeting to review the item and add it to the agenda to be discussed unless it is an emergency item.

9. COMMISSIONERS REPORTS

- Chairperson Nordbye nothing to report.
- Vice Chairperson Elliott nothing to report.
- Commissioner Romano attended Planning Commissioner training in Oroville.
- Commissioner Montague attended the Planning Commissioner training in Oroville.
- Commissioner Lazorko attended the Planning Commissioner training in Oroville.

10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Mr. Friend shared that Commissioner Romano has a presentation on streetscapes and roundabouts that she would like to add to the next agenda.

11. ADJOURNMENT - 6:48 PM

Respectfully submitted,

Jennifer Schmitke, City Clerk

Stephen Nordbye, Chairperson



CITY OF ORLAND Staff Report

TO:	City of Orland Planning Commission
FROM:	Scott Friend, AICP, Contract Planner
MEETING DATE:	May 18th, 2023; 5:30 p.m., Carnegie Center, 912 Third
	Street, Orland
SUBJECT:	Discussion/Direction – Citizen Initiated General Plan
	Text Amendment in support of the Proposed Penbrook
	Subdivision: TSM 2022-01:
	Discussion/Direction regarding a proposed citizen-initiated General Plan text amendment in support of the proposed <i>Penbrook</i> subdivision located at the southwest corner of the Papst Avenue/South Street.

Summary:

Mr. Steven Butler (applicant representative on behalf of Lakeport Parkside, LLC) contacted the Planning Commission and has requested that a discussion occur in regard to a citizeninitiated General Plan text amendment supporting the proposed *Penbrook* subdivision. The proposed discussion is in regard to the wording of City of Orland General Plan policy 3.2.B.2, *Collector Street Standards* #6 contained in the City of Orland General Plan Circulation Element.

No approval/denial action will be taken on this matter.

Discussion/Analysis:

At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission held on the 20th of April, Mr. Butler requested that the Planning Commission consider a proposed citizen-initiated General Plan Amendment addressing the existing wording of General Plan policy 3.2.B.2, Collector Street Standards #6. Mr. Butler's request was made during the citizen comment portion of the meeting agenda. As part of his request, Mr. Butler provided the members of the Commission with a letter outlining proposed alternative wording of the policy.

As the matter was not specifically outlined on the meeting Agenda, staff informed Mr. Butler

that the Commission could neither formally respond to the request nor could they take action on the matter during the meeting. However, the Commission directed staff to place the matter onto the May Planning Commission meeting agenda to provide an opportunity for further discussion.

The existing text of City of Orland General Plan Policy 3.2.B.2, Collector Street Standards #6 reads as follows:

6) Residential development shall not have direct access to and shall be oriented away (side-on or rear-on) from Arterial and Major Collector streets, and properly buffered so that the traffic carrying capacity on the street will be preserved and the residential environment protected from the potentially adverse characteristics of the street.

Pursuant to the direction of the Planning Commission, staff has placed this item on the May Agenda for discussion and direction.

Environmental Analysis and Determination:

Not applicable.

Recommendation:

No formal staff recommendation is being made at this time as no action is proposed on the matter.

PRECISION SURVEYING

1165 Hoff Way, Suite 204 Orland, CA 95963
 Phone
 530-865-4194

 Mobile
 530-624-1053

April 20, 2023

Chairman, Steven Nordbye City of Orland Planning Commission 815 Fourth Street Orland, CA 95963

Subject: Circulation Element Amendment, Future Agenda Item Request.

Mr. Chairman,

On behalf of Lakeport Parkside, LLC. (Penbrook Subdivision), I am requesting that the above mentioned item be placed on the next month Planning Commission Agenda for discussion/action.

Specifically, Chapter 3.0 Circulation Element, Policy 3.2.B: Collector Street Standards,

6) Residential development shall not have direct access to and shall be oriented away (side-on or rear-on) from Arterial and Major Collector streets, and properly buffered so that the traffic carrying capacity on the street will be preserved and residential environment protected from the potentially adverse characteristics of the street.

Proposed amendment:

6) Residential development shall not have direct access to and shall be orientedaway (side-on or rear-on) from incorporate measures to reduce negative impacts from Arterial and Major Collector streets, and properly buffered so that the traffic carrying capacity on the street will be preserved and residential environment protected from the potentially adverse characteristics of the street.

Should the Planning Commission, Staff or Yourself have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely Steven/Butle presurv@vahoo.com

cc: Lakeport Parkside, LLC.

Circulation Element Agenda Request